
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

October 25, 2016 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Oct 25 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, North Side Middle School, 300 Lawrence St. 

Oct 25 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, North Side Middle School, 300 Lawrence St. 

Oct 25 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, North Side Middle School, 300 Lawrence St. 

Nov 8 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 8 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 8 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 15 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 
B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 

C. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 
 

Central High School – Logan Brown 

Memorial High School – Khalek Sengsone 
 

D. MINUTES - 

October 11, 2016 – Public Work Session 
October 11, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

E. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Financial Report – January 1, 2016 – September 30, 2016 

 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 
appreciation of recent donations made to the Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 



BOARD AGENDA October 25, 2016 
 
 

2 
   

F. PERSONNEL 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 
the administration. 

 
G. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 
trip requests. 
 

 Strategic Plan 2017-2022 – The Strategic Plan 2017-2022 is presented for 
consideration. 
 

H. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

I. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

October 11, 2016 
 
West Side Middle School, 101 S. Nappanee Street, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Karen S. Carter Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
Absent: Glenn L. Duncan  
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Dawn McGrath 
 Doug Hasler Kevin Scott 
 Rob Haworth Jamie Snyder 
 Jeff Komins Doug Thorne 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard a report from Doug Hasler, Chief Operating Officer, and Jamie 
Snyder, Security Officer, on the recent clown threat and actions taken to ensure 
safety; Jeff Komins, Energy Education Specialist/Elementary Activities, gave a 
review of current elementary sports activities and West Side’s building energy 

audit; and discussed agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:10 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 

MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

October 11, 2016 
 
 

West Side Middle School, 101 South Nappanee Street, Elkhart –  
at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Carolyn R. Morris 

Present: Karen S. Carter Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
Absent: Glenn L. Duncan  

   
 

Roll Call 

Vice President Susan Daiber called the regular meeting of the Board of 
School Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Mrs. Daiber discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

Protocol 

Special recognition was given to Central High School soccer players, 
Aaron Coddington and Isaias Monte-Madrigal, and Mishawaka High 
School soccer player, Harrison Coggens-Clark, for their sportsmanship, 

character and respect displayed at a recent soccer match. 
 

Student 
Recognition 

Jeff Komins, energy education specialist/elementary activities, reported 

on the building audit performed October 7th at West Side Middle School.  
70% of all work stations were found to be in complete compliance of 
energy shut down policies including electronics and room lights off, 

windows, blinds and doors closed. Cost avoidance for 2106 is at 37.8% 
and is valued at $45,282.  West Side is ranked 6th overall among 
classroom buildings.  Mr. Komins thanked Principal Kristie Stutsman and 

her staff for all of their efforts towards the energy savings policies. 
 

Building  

Energy Report 

Kristie Stutsman, principal, recognized and thanked all West Side staff 

presented at the meeting; reported on the Fall sports season successes; 
announced 56 students will be going to Washington, DC over Fall break; 
highlighted two new programs, Project Based Learning and Ag Science 

for all 8th graders.  Two students gave a demonstration with some of the 
new equipment for measuring the pH balance of a liquid.  Science 
instructor, Mark Schroeder, commented on the success of the course, 

the training involved for staff, and how agricultural science careers and 
communication are being integrated throughout the curriculum.  Mrs. 
Stutsman provided a handout reviewing West Side’s school 

improvement goals. 

Building Report 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
September 27, 2016 – Public Work Session 

September 27, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$6,187,118.29 as shown on the October 11, 2016, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1617-49) 
 

Payment of 

Claims  

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  a Wurlitzer piano 
valued at $750.00 from Vicky Chrobot; and $3,200.00 from Bob and 

Amy Martin to Central High Schools’ football program. 
 

Gift Acceptance 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1617-50) 

 

Fundraiser 

Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an extra-curricular purchase 
of 20 cheerleading uniforms in the amount of $1,313.96 from North Side 

Middle School’s extra-curricular account. 
 

Extra Curricular 
Purchase 

 

Doug Hasler, chief operating officer, reported the lease agreement 
regarding the aquatic center with Beacon Health Systems and the 
Community Foundation of Elkhart County is in the final stages of review. 

 

Partnership 
Update 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved and waived 2nd reading of a 
change to the 2016-2017 School Board Meeting calendar. The October 

25, 2016 Board meeting location has been changed to North Side Middle 
School.  (Codified File 1617-51) 
 

2016-2017 
Board Meeting 

Calendar 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved and waived 2nd reading of an 
agreement related to calculation of years of service for retirement and 
VEBA eligibility.  (Codified File 1617-52) 

 

Agreement 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submission of a grant to the 
Indiana Department of Education for a 21st Century Grant for Roosevelt 

STEAM Academy as recommended by the administration.  Dawn 
McGrath, deputy superintendent, gave an update on the recent School 
Improvement Grant submittals. (Codified File 1617-53) 

 

Grant Approval 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved new course offerings in 
accordance with Board policy. New courses include: Art History/VC4024; 

Animal Science/HS5056; and Plant Science/HS5170.  (Codified File 
1617-54) 
 

New Course 
Offerings 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an overnight trip request for 
Elkhart Central High School drumline/percussion students  to travel to 
Indianapolis on November 9 thru 13, 2016 to attend a percussion 

conference. 

Overnight Trip 
Request 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the October 11, 2016 listings. (Codified File 1617-55) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 

recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 

Report 

An agreement regarding unpaid time for a certified staff member. 
(Codified Files 1617-56) 

 

Consent 
Agreement 

Employment of the following four (4) certified staff members for 
the 2016-2017 school year, effective on dates indicated:  

Holly Powell - grade 5 at Roosevelt 
Heba Said - grade 3 at Roosevelt, 10/3/16 

Corey Sheets - kindergarten at Roosevelt, 10/3/16 
Randy Styles – business education at Pierre Moran, 10/4/16 
 

Certified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of the following two (2) certified staff members 
effective on dates indicated: 

Melissa Cutcliffe – behavior support at ESC, 10/21/16 

Michelle McClintic – grade 5 at Osolo, 11/4/16 
 

Certified 
Resignation 
 

Change to maternity leave for certified staff member, Daleanne 

Woods, grade 5 at Feeser, beginning 9/27/16 and ending 
11/11/16. 
 

Certified Leave 

Retirement of Rosa Manay, bus helper at Transportation, effective 
12/16/16 after 11 years of service. 
 

Classified 
Retirement 

Resignation of the following six (6) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated:  

Priscilla Brown - paraprofessional at Riverview, 10/14/16 

Kimberly Gappa - custodian at West Side, 10/11/16 
Lorie Freet - paraprofessional at Bristol, 10/12/16 
Darnisha Sanders - food service at Commissary, 9/27/16 

Jacquelyn Taylor - secretary at Riverview, 10/21/16 
Teresa Woodley - food service at Beck, 10/3/16 
 

Classified 
Resignations 
 

  



4 
 

Regular employment of the following twenty-six (26) classified 
employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated: 
Mayra Adame - food service at Monger, 9/29/16 
Jessica Baker - food service at West Side, 9/26/16 

Patricia Botka - bus helper at Transportation, 10/6/16 
Cordelia Brown - food service at Central, 10/10/16 
Johnny Buford - food service at Monger, 9/29/16 

Edry Danner - bus driver unassigned at Transportation,  
  10/3/16 
Tonya Digia - paraprofessional at Tipton, 10/10/16 

Miranda Doolittle - custodian at Roosevelt, 9/29/16 
Barbara Dunn - bus driver unassigned at Transportation, 
  9/29/16 

Deanna Foster - paraprofessional at Osolo, 9/28/16 
Janelya Gates - food service at Central, 9/29/16 
Angela Green-Pitts - bus helper at Transportation, 9/29/16 

Betty Harris - food service at Monger, 9/29/16 
Julieanne Hartin - food service at Woodland, 9/29/16 
Clara Hendrix - bus helper at Transportation, 9/29/16 

Michelle Kulp - food service at Cleveland, 9/29/16 
Julie Kroehler - food service at commissary, 10/3/16 

Kayla Magyar - bus driver unassigned at Transportation, 
  9/29/16 
Shari Mathews - bus driver unassigned at Transportation 

  10/10/16 
Lynda Miller - food service at Pinewood, 9/29/16 
Idelis Monge-Roman - bus helper at Transportation, 9/29/16 

Terry Neely - paraprofessional at Beck, 9/29/16 
Denise Popour - bus driver unassigned at Transportation, 
  9/30/16 

Nicole Quesinberry - food service at Beardsley, 9/29/16 
Jamie Schultz - paraprofessional at West Side, 10/7/16 
Brooke Wilcox - bus driver at Transportation, 9/29/16 

Anthony Zinich - paraprofessional at Woodland, 10/4/16 
 

Classified  
Employment 

Unpaid leave for classified employee Abigail Howell, para- 

professional at Bristol beginning 10/31/16 through 5/26/17. 
 

Classified  

Leave 
 

Change to medical leave for classified employee Haley Burkhart, 

physical therapist at PACE, beginning 3/18/16 through 10/11/16. 
 

Change to 

Classified Leave 
 

The Board heard an audience member speak regarding the strategic 
plan’s quality indicators and suggested the following additions: number 
of graduates who pass at least one AP exam in high school; and number 

of graduates who pass at least three AP exams commended as AP 
scholars.  The Board thanked him for his presentation. 
 

From the 
Audience 

The Board heard an audience member speak regarding the strategic 

plan focusing on the need to attract more students and a polytechnic 
high school.  The Board thanked him for his presentation. 

From the 

Audience 



5 
 

The Board heard an audience member speak regarding West Side’s 
cross country team; Gabby Scott and Alex LeFever, 8th graders, finished 

second in the Big 11 cross country meet and were the top runners for 
Elkhart Community Schools.  She expressed thanks for the great work 
done by the coaches.  The Board thanked her for his presentation. 

 

From the 
Audience 

The Board heard an audience member speak in support of the strategic 
plan and appreciation for all of the work that went in to the plan 

including the community participation.  He spoke in regards to being an 
involved parent of three graduates and a current senior.  The Board 
thanked him for his presentation. 

 

From the 
Audience 

A Board member complimented the Food Service Department on the 
success of their recent Showcase held at North Side, the response from 

the community and willingness of vendors to participate. 
 

From the Board 
 

A Board member invited the audience to attend “Spaghetti Day” on 

Monday, November 7th sponsored by the Kiwanis Club at the Knights of 
Columbus for everyone running in the November elections.   
 

From the Board 

 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:05 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
  ____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



PETTY CASH $ 500.00                

GENERAL ACCOUNTS:                      

     Lake City Bank 14,314,970.33    

     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                              1,115,539.89      

     Teachers Credit Union                                                           2,832,119.09      

     BMO Harris Bank (UMR insurance) 407,420.00         

SCHOOL LUNCH ACCOUNTS:

     Lake City Bank                                                                       (880,638.84)        

     Change Fund            2,010.00             

TEXTBOOK RENTAL ACCOUNTS:

     Chase Bank 1,444,038.79      

PAYROLL ACCOUNTS:

     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                        194,496.00         

     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                                  55,198.18           

     Teachers Credit Union-Payroll Account 50,237.68           

     Teachers Credit Union - Flex Account                                 11,639.13           

     

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                      

                                                                                                                            

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL

September 2016

19,547,530.2519,547,530.2519,547,530.2519,547,530.25$     $     $     $         

2





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  October 12, 2016 

 

To:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

From:  Cary Anderson 

  Jacquie Rost 

 

Re:  Donation Approval 

 

 

Elkhart Memorial High School Athletic department is in receipt of an extracurricular 

donation of a golf cart valued at $2,200.00 to be used by the Elkhart Memorial Athletic 

Department. 

 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and 

that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Mrs. Phyllis Tubbs  

71075 Dawn Dr.  

Union, MI 49130 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
DATE:  10-13-2016 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:  Lisa Baugh, 3rd Grade Teacher 

Cc:  April Walker, Principal 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

 Monger Elementary is requesting permission to accept a $500.00 donation to go towards 

IREAD3 incentives for 3rd graders.  BABSCO would like us to purchase one girl’s bike and one boy's bike 

along with helmets for our 3rd grade reading competition.  For every ten hours a student reads, they get 

to put their name into a drawing for a chance to win the bike.  The donor also would like us to have 

small incentives along the way to get the kids geared up to the final goal of improving their reading.  The 

donation is from Jan Farron (BABSCO). 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

   Jan Farron (BABSCO)  

   2410 S Main Street  

                 Elkhart, In 46517 

   574-293-0631 

 

 

 





 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

To:    Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Mr. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  October 25, 2016 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

a. Maternity Leave  - We recommend a maternity leave for the following employees: 

Victoria Culp   Eastwood/Grade 1 

Begin:  11/7/16   End:  11/8/16 

 

Tracey Whitmyer  Beck/Asst Principal 

Begin:  12/1/16   End:  12/16/16 

 

 

b. Change to Resignation – We report the retirement of the following employee at the end of the 

2015-16 school year: 

Robyn Hill  Eastwood/Grade 1 15 Years of Service 

 

CLASSIFIED 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

 

Robert Henning  Career Center/WVPE Program Director 

Began: 12/15/14  Resign: 10/16/16 

 

Barbara White   Commissary/Food Service 

Began: 8/5/15   Resign: 7/21/16 

 

b. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees:  

 

 

Loretta Champlin  Daly/ Food Service 

Began: 8/18/16   PE: 10/13/16 

 

Curbiee Coleman  Tipton/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/22/16   PE: 10/24/16 

 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Lori Elliott   Career Center/Secretary 

Began: 8/29/16   PE: 10/24/16 

 

Maria Gonzalez  Riverview/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/19/16   PE: 10/14/16 

 

Connie Jones   Beardsley/Food Service 

Began: 8/22/16   PE: 10/24/16 

 

Bethany Mowery  Hawthorne/Secretary 

Began: 8/19/16   PE: 10/14/16 

 

Deondra Nelson  Woodland/Food Service 

Began: 8/22/16   PE: 10/24/16 

 

Demetrius Pegues  Beck/Academic Trainer 

Began: 8/17/16   PE: 10/12/16 

 

Ana Victoria Santos  Pinewood/Secretary 

Began: 8/22/16   PE: 10/17/16 

 

 

c. Termination – We recommend termination for the following employees:  

 

   Michelle Daniels  Beck/Food Service 

   Began: 2/16/16   Terminate: 10/25/16 

       Board Policy GDPD 1, c, g  

 

Richard Hooven  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 11/2/10   Terminate: 10/11/16 

    Board Policy GDPD 1, a, c, g 

 
















	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session October 11 2016
	Minutes - Regular Meeting October 11 2016
	Balance Sheet - September 2016
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - MHS
	Gift Acceptance - Monger
	Fundraisers
	Personnel Report
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Conference Leave Requests
	Overnight Trip Requests
	EACC MC 12.6-12.10.16.pdf
	PMMS 7.8 SS 5.25-5.29.17


